
Cambridge City Council Meeting Minutes
Monday, October 18, 2021

A regular meeting of the Cambridge City Council was held on Monday, October 18, 2021, at

Cambridge City Hall Council Chambers, 300 3rd Avenue NE, Cambridge, Minnesota, 55008.

Members Present:     Mayor James Godfrey; Council Members Lisa Iverson, Kersten Conley, Mark
Ziebarth, and Bob Shogren.

Staff Present:    City Administrator Vogel, Assistant City Administrator Lewis, City Attorney
Squires, Police Chief Schuster, and Finance Director Moe.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Godfrey called the meeting to order at 6: 00 pm and led the public in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Citizens Forum

Howard Lewis ( 343 South Cypress Street) appeared to speak before the council about not having a

more proactive reporting system for code and ordinance violations.  He would like to see a better

way of citing residents for code and ordinance violations, other than relying solely on complaints.

Approval of Agenda

Iverson wished to add item 9A— Facebook to Council Concerns, and Ziebarth wished to add item 9B—

Community Businesses to Council Concerns. Iverson moved, seconded by Conley, to approve the

amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda

Shogren pulled item 4D from the consent agenda for introductions with Eric Baumgart. Iverson

moved, seconded by Shogren, to approve consent agenda Items A- C and E- F:
A.  Resolution R21- 045 2021 General Fund Budget Amendment

B.  Warrants# 121091-# 121345 and ACH/ Wire items totaling$ 1, 617, 705. 10

C.  Approve MOU with LELS Regarding Eric Baumgart
E.  Approve conditional offer of Kaylee Witzman as Part- Time Cashier at Northbound Liquor

F.  Approve Conditional Offer of Peter Erickson to the Cambridge Police Department

Upon roll call, Godfrey, Shogren, Ziebarth, Iverson, and Conley voted aye, no nays. Motion passed

unanimously.

Schuster said Eric Baumgart has been an officer for the City of Braham for 21 years and was a top

candidate in the last hiring process.  He said a conditional offer letter was presented to Eric and he
has accepted. Council members and Baumgart took a moment to greet each other. Shogren moved,

seconded by Conley, to approve the Conditional Offer of Eric Baumgart to the Cambridge Police

Department. Motion passed unanimously.

October 18, 2021 Page 1 of 5



Work Session

Update from Cambridge Hospital on Pandemic Response

Kelly Sprat, President of the Cambridge Medical Center and Buffalo Hospital for Allina, provided
information on the pandemic response for the Cambridge Hospital.  He noted some of the disruptions

to the healthcare system due to Covid, and how it has now advanced the medicine and capabilities

within the system. Sprat noted some of the statistics of patients with Covid, and how they are
working with patients across the state.  He said they are doing a " Hospital at Home" program, where

they would send some patients back to their home and provide them with care in their own home.

He said the telehealth and telemedicine has expanded greatly, and there are many advancements in
technology that allow patients to monitor their health at home as well. Sprat provided updates on

several of their other programs they participate in to provide various services and resources for
residents in our community. The Council members added their appreciation and thanks for all of the

wonderful things and programs that are being done to help the members of our community.

Personnel Policy Review: Section 17 Vacation Leave Accrual

Vogel said he has asked department heads to provide feedback and suggestions on the Personnel

Policy for 2022.  He said he would be bringing up these suggestions to the council over the next few
months, and ask if the council is in support of the suggestions with a " thumbs up or down".  If they

are in support of a change, it will be included in the final Policy to be approved at the last meeting in
December. Vogel said these suggested changes would help to retain the incredibly talented staff that

we currently have, and would help attract the best possible candidates for future opportunities.

Vogel said the first suggestion would be to change Section 17: Vacation Leave, specifically the
sections 17( b) and 17( c). The first change would revert vacation accumulation back to the old

accumulation schedule, where employees who have been with the city for 15+ years can accumulate
5 weeks of vacation per year. Vogel said it would only affect a handful of employees, but would show
our most loyal employees that they are valued. The next change would provide vacation benefits to

permanent part-time employees who work a minimum of 20 hours per week. Vogel stated these
employees work very hard and provide tremendous value to the city, and it would show good faith to

provide vacation, and later sick pay, to these employees.  It would also help to attract good

candidates who are only looking for part- time work. Another change would increase the vacation
maximum from 240 hours to 320 hours, and any unused leave balance of more than 240 hours at the

end of the year would be lost. Vogel stated the maximum payout in the event of an employee leaving
the city would be 240 hours.  He said this would provide flexibility to employees, especially when

different times of the year are more appropriate for a department or position to take time off. The

council members gave a unanimous thumbs up to include these changes in the 2022 Personnel Policy,
and Vogel stated he would bring back a final draft of the policy in late December for council approval.

There was no Unfinished Business.

New Business

Amendments to Guidelines of City Revolving Loan Fund

Lewis apprised the council of proposed amendments to the City' s Revolving Loan Fund Guidelines.
She said they are being update for tow reasons: to differentiate between the manufacturing revolving

loan fund and the Downtown revolving loan fund, and to expand the criteria to further attract and

retain businesses.  Lewis said the city is receiving inquiries about sites in Cambridge, and our current

October 18, 2021 Page 2 of 5



guidelines are limited in that they do not authorize the city to purchase participation in a loan to a
business, which is often useful for new or expanding businesses. She said these revised guidelines

will help the city improve their business retention and expansion efforts. There is no fiscal impact at

this time since this is just a policy update. Vogel added that Lewis, Moe, and Jordan Zeller of ECREC,
have been working on these guidelines for some time now, and would allow the city to participate in

loans with businesses that we currently can' t participate in. Squires said the most important

consideration, which he believed was addressed, is to make sure it is papered correctly so that if the

city is contributing funds with other lenders, that it is clear where we stand with priority if there is a
default on the loan.  He said he believed the city would be on equal footing with other lenders if the
paperwork is done correctly, and feels that is a better position for the city to be in than what is

normally done when there are multiple lenders.

Shogren moved, seconded by Conley, to approve the revised Revolving Loan Fund Guidelines for
Manufacturing Businesses. Ziebarth asked if the city's position in regards to default will be part of
negotiations for each loan, or if there is specific language that will be used to determine that. Squires

said the guidelines are just of a general nature right now, and staff will need to specify the city' s
position on a case- by-case basis. The documents would then need to be brought back to council for
approval.  He said it would allow for some flexibility in negotiating of the city' s position, and would

depend on the details of the loan being requested.  Roll call was taken on the motion, and the motion

passed unanimously.

Address Air Conditioning Concerns at Play Inc Arts
Vogel stated Play Inc Arts leases a space at the Cambridge Public Library from the City, and has

complained this past summer about the space being uncomfortably hot. He said he has spoken with
Jodie Briggs on the situation, and has obtained a quote from Air Conditioning Associates, Inc. ( ACA) to
add a new air conditioning system for this space. Vogel said it is the City' s responsibility to fix the air
conditioning, according to the lease, to resolve this problem.  He said there would be new ductwork

installed, and the tenant would have control over the temperature of the unit.  Fund 425- 48000- 416

would be used to cover the costs of the repairs, which is the fund that Council set aside $ 100,000 for

repairs to the library.  Iverson asked why there was not enough ductwork installed in the area, and if
it was because they had originally planned for a restaurant to be in that space. Vogel stated that

there is no know reason for why there is less ductwork in that space, but the windows face east and it

is very hot in there by noon. Godfrey asked how much is left in the fund, and Moe stated that there
would be $ 90, 000 left in the fund after replacing the air conditioning. She said the city planned to
add $ 5,000 into the fund for 10 years after the library was built for any repairs that needed to be
done.  Iverson moved, seconded by Ziebarth, to approve the quote from ACA to resolve the air
conditioning problems at a cost not to exceed $ 9, 957.  Motion passed unanimously.

Approve Resolution R21- 046 for a Final Plat of Woodhaven Acres 4th Addition
Lewis stated staff had received a request from David Norberg for a final plat of Woodhaven Acres 4th
Addition. She said the preliminary plat was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission and

City Council last month. The plat will consist of eight new single-family lots and the completion of
Maple Drive South to 34th Avenue Southwest. Lewis said staff will continue to work with the

developer on the last few engineering comments listed, prior to the Development Contract being

completed. The final plat is consistent with the preliminary and is in compliance with the goals of the
Comprehensive Plan, Zoning and Subdivision regulation of the City.  Lewis stated parkland has already

October 18, 2021 Page 3 of 5



been dedicated and satisfied, and although vacant, will be accessible from the street construction

happening with this plat. She said staff recommends approval with conditions being met. Godfrey

asked if the hearing was done at the Planning Commission level, and was notified that it had been.
Shogren moved, seconded by Ziebarth, to approve Resolution R21- 046 approving the Final Plat for

Woodhaven Acres 411 Addition with the conditions listed.  Motion passed unanimously.

Consider Abatement ofSeptic and Sewer/ Water Hook-up at 690 Old Main St. N.
Lewis stated the septic system located at 690 Old Main Street North failed at a Point- of- Sale

inspection. The property was not yet located in the municipal boundary, and Isanti County sent a
Notice of Non- Compliance letter to the owner, Dustin Sawicki, on December 3, 2020. An agreement

to upgrade the system was signed by the owner in November 2020.  Mr. Sawicki contacted the city in

June 2021 to discuss the associated costs and process of connecting to city water and sewer, and
petitioned the city for annexation. The annexation was approved by the City in July, and the State of

Minnesota officially approved it on July 28, 2021. Once annexed, a property is required to hook- up to

city services if the services are within 300 feet of the property.  On October 13, 2021 Mr. Sawicki

contacted staff and explained he is in agreement with the abatement procedure, but currently cannot
pay outright. Therefore, a special assessment on his tax roll is preferred at this time.  Lewis stated a

non- compliant septic system is considered a public nuisance according to City Code Section 92. 17
W), and is a risk to the public' s health and safety since it is failing to protect the groundwater. She

said they only received one quote in the amount of$ 9, 300, and required city permit fees amount to
3, 630.  Lewis said the total costs come to $12, 930, and all costs associated with this will be specially

assessed and collected with the tax roll.

Godfrey asked if they were to approve this abatement tonight, would they still have enough time to
get the work done before the ground freezes, and was told that is what staff is hoping for. Squires

added there also needs to be an assessment agreement prepared and executed by the property

owner for the costs that will be added to the property tax roll. Shogren asked if they were to approve
this with only one quote, how will they stop any bids from competitors to come in and under- bid the

quote from DW Co.  He didn' t want the city to open itself up to any issues with allowing other bids to

come in hereafter, and suggested approving the abatement with the bid they already have. Conley

oved, seconded by Ziebarth, to approve entering into an assessment agreement between Dustin

Sawicki and the City of Cambridge, approve the abatement of the existing well, removal of the
existing septic system, installation of city sewer and water services, and to approve restoration of the

yard at 690 Old Main Street North not to exceed $ 12, 930.  Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor' s Report

Godfrey announced the Cambridge City Park won the award for Best Local Park, and wanted to thank
staff for all the hard work they do in maintaining and hosting activities in the park.

Council Concerns

Facebook

Iverson noted how the Isanti County Sheriff' s Department and other local law enforcement posts to

their Facebook pages on activities and good things their departments are doing. She asked if the City

of Cambridge page could post positive things the Cambridge Police Department is doing too, and
Vogel said that is a good suggestion that they would like to start doing.  He said this would be right in
line with the city doing more to recognize good employees.

October 18, 2021 Page 4 of 5



Community Businesses/ Anti- Bullying

Ziebarth wanted to recognize October as the National Manufacturing Month.  He thanked the

manufacturers who reside in the City of Cambridge, and noted their contributions to our local
economy.

Ziebarth also wanted to note that October is Anti- Bullying month.  He wanted to thank the

Cambridge- Isanti schools for everything they are doing to advocate and teach our youth and

residents the importance of standing up for those that are being mistreated in our schools and

community.  He also wanted to thank the School Resource Officers for all of the work they are doing

this month to promote anti- bullying.

City Attorney/ City Administrator' s Report

Vogel wanted to update that the library sculpture has been installed, and he will update members on
a ribbon cutting to be held at a later date.  He also noted that the city has been working on employee

recognition, and will be starting monthly all- staff meetings to promote connectivity among staff
members and departments.

Adjournment of Council Meeting

Being no further business before the City Council, Shogren moved, seconcleabsonleytoacjourn
the regular meeting at 7: 09 pm.  Motion carried unanimously.

J es A. Godfr

ATTEST:

Evan Vogel,   ' y dministrator

October 18, 2021 Page 5 of 5




















































































